
 
 

 
 
 
 

Cornell University Graduate and Professional Student Assembly 
Agenda of the November 12th, 2018 Meeting  

5:30 PM – 7:00 PM 
Bache Auditorium, Malott Hall 

 
I. Call to Order  

II. Roll Call (5 Minutes) 

III. Approval of the Minutes (5 Minutes) 

a. Minutes from October 29th, 2018 

IV. Presentations 

a. Beth Yarze, Chair, Graduate and Professional Student Assembly Finance 

Commission (20 Minutes) 

b. Terri Boslett, Associate Dean of Students, Finance and Administration, 

Reimbursements (20 Minutes) 

V. Division Breakout (20 Minutes) 

VI. Committee Update Q&A (5 Minutes)  

VII. Open Forum (10 Minutes) 

a. Ivy+ Report 

VIII.    Adjournment (5 Minutes) 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 

Cornell University Graduate and Professional Student Assembly  
Minutes of the October 29th, 2018 Meeting  

5:30 pm – 7:00 pm 
Bache Auditorium, Malott Hall 

 
I. Call to Order 

a. E. Winarto called the meeting to order at 5:30 pm. 
b. Members Present​: D. Arora, A. Barrientos-Gomez, A. Cohn, D. Geisler, R. Harrison, 

M. Jodlowski, M. Kalaji, J. Kent-Dobias, K. Krishnan, E. Lavin, N. London, C. 
Mittan, K. Palumbo, C. Pratt, W. Zhang, E. Winarto, J. Bogdanowicz.  

c. Members Absent​: K. Angierski, A. Viarruel, A. Belen Ruival, N. Carre. 
d. A motion was made to move Approval of the Minutes after Presentations, there was 

no dissent.  
II. Presentations 

a. Chris Payne, Director of Administrator Services, Student Health Benefits Advisory 
committee, then made his presentation. 

b. C. Payne: all students are required to have health insurance that meets the minimum 
standards established by Risk Management and Insurance. All students are 
automatically enrolled in the Student Health Plan (SHP), and have to request a 
waiver to opt-out. 

c. C. Payne: SHP+ is for anyone who is eligible for NYS Medicaid. 
d. C. Payne: the Cornell Health website has a cost of services chart for the SHP, 

SHP+, or the Student Health Fee (SHF).  
e. C. Payne: When the Health Fee was implemented, clinical encounters increased. The 

Health Fee lowered costs, and students now know what they’re gonna get when they 
walk in the door. Cornell Health thought that clinical encounters would increase, 
but didn’t know by how much. The numbers are up: 38% in primary care visits, 
26% in CAPS assessments, and 68% in Student Disability Services.  

f. C. Payne: Cornell Health has been increasing the ratio of support staff to clinical 
staff, which makes clinical staff more productive and lowers costs. Cornell Health is 
also restructuring administration in order to be more efficient and move money to 
clinical staff. The number of CAPS counselors and CAPS visits are both increasing.  

g. C. Payne showcased ongoing cost drivers:  



 
 
 
 
 

i. Annual salaries increase 2.5-3% per year. 
1. Health care salary market pay increases add 1% per year to the above 

number to remain competitive. 
ii. Services and supplies inflation is 2% per year. 
iii. Population growth (campus population) is 1.3% per year. 
iv. Mental health utilization is increasing and is a national trend with an 

uncertain trajectory. 
v. Primary care utilization increased after the Health Fee was implemented. It 

may be stabilizing. 
h. C. Payne then highlighted major changes in Cornell Health’s finances: 

i. Revenue: currently relying on $800,000 in one time funding (gifts and 
reserves). 

ii. Expenses: cost drivers, offset by a $100,000 expense reduction. 
iii. Net impact is a $700,000 operating deficit that needs to close. 
iv. Cornell needs continual upstream investments. Most of the money is spent 

downstream (e.g. urgent intervention which has high costs). Up stream 
includes influencing the environment (e.g. stress and anxiety reduction). 
Midstream constitutes better access, early intervention, etc.  

v. Closing the gap will require a 10% base increase in the Health Fee, from 
$370 to $408, to maintain the current response to this increased need. 

1. This includes the CAPS staffing increase. 
2. This will factor into the Student Health Plan premium (many other 

factors will influence the premium as well). 
vi. Expanding services: the Student Health Benefits Advisory committee is 

considering recommendations for multi-year increased investment in 
upstream measures to improve student health. 

i. M. Battaglia thanked C. Payne for the presentation. He was at Cornell when the 
Health Fee was first implemented. The way it was sold to shared governance and 
people on campus then is different from how it is sold now. If this passes, it will 
have increased $58 in four years. It was advertised as a fee that wouldn’t have to go 
up by leaps and bounds every year. M. Battaglia asked how student enrollment 
increases costs (as opposed to bringing in more revenue)? 



 
 
 
 
 

i. C. Payne: there are a couple of important things to note about that: the SHP 
capitation and Health Fee are not the only sources of funding, but they are 
the only sources that grows with population. They make up 40% of funding. 
Cornell Health has more static money that comes from the University 
administration from tuition, but it doesn’t grow with enrollment. We’re not 
sure where the increase in demand for student services is going to end.  

j. M. Battaglia asked where does C. Payne see demand tapering off? At what point 
does he think we’ll catch up or we’ll have projections that overcompensate so that 
we’re better off and don’t have to increase the Fee again by 10%?  

i. C. Payne: at what point we see demand tapering off, that’s difficult to 
answer. We don’t have a lot of data to work from. We don’t want to assume 
that we as a community will be static. We don’t want to passively respond to 
what shows up at our door, we want to address causes and act proactively. 

k. D. Geisler: does the SHF increasing from $370 to $408 cover the deficit of 
$700,000? 

i. C. Payne: the health fee increase is at 10%, but the student health plan 
actually provides more per capita funding because students on the SHP use 
more services. The equivalent from the SHP is roughly $450, that should 
help make the math work.  

l. E. Lavin asked who the CAPS visits number represented on one of the graphs. 
i. C. Payne: all students: undergraduate, graduate and professional. 
ii. E. Lavin: would you say it follows this trend for graduate and professional 

students? 
iii. C. Payne: can’t say for sure. 
iv. E. Lavin: the projected medical cost inflation is only 6%, why would there 

be a 10% increase? 
v. C. Payne: why is the percent increase different from the national increase? 

We are backstopping the current services we are providing with one time 
funds, and as a result we have to make up that gap as well as inflationary 
factors.  

m. R. Harrison is not surprised that student behavior isn’t static. She is really concerned 
that we’re seeing such significant, unanticipated changes. She asked what did his 



 
 
 
 
 

office learn during this change, and how does he plan to change the way this 
proposed increase will be messaged and rolled out (in regard to increasing trust)? 

i. C. Payne: one piece of important history is when the Health Fee was 
modeled, they were projecting a 3% increase per year in the Health Fee. It 
was proposed that it would grow at 3% per year. However, it was held flat, 
or increased by less than 3%. In part what we’re doing now is catching up 
from when it was held artificially low.  

n. K. Krishnan: why are international students not allowed to opt out of the SHP? 
i. C. Payne: that policy decision was made because it’s typically challenging to 

navigate international insurance within the US. Students often face high 
costs trying to do that. International students can appeal this decision if their 
insurance works well. 

o. K. Krishnan: that appeal process is not very clear. She has heard that CAPS staffing 
is limited in diversity. How is Cornell Health planning to address this? 

i. C. Payne: we have had a large focus over several years on diversity. We have 
gotten approval to go over the budgeted full time employee (FTE) number 
to search for diverse candidates. The current staff is less diverse than the 
Cornell community, but is more diverse than the market.  

p. C. Mittan: the upstream changes sound great, but that seems like an issue a lot of 
people are working on and something that is very complicated. She asked him to 
speak a little more on Cornell Health’s role in that. 

i. C. Payne: we are proposing that we partner public health professionals with 
faculty to help them implement data informed methodologies. People need 
stress to improve, but that stress has to be balanced. The Public health 
professionals and faculty partnership is what we’re proposing. 

q. An audience member asked why did they eliminate the reimbursement for Cornell 
gym memberships (a good way to reduce stress)?  

i. C. Payne: we follow New York State’s model language. When NYS removed 
it we removed it. We follow the NYS guidelines exactly. 

r. An audience member asked are students able to waive the Health Fee if they can’t 
afford it? 



 
 
 
 
 

i. C. Payne: no Ithaca campus student can waive it. If a student is eligible for 
grant aid, they receive additional grant aid to cover it. It is considered part of 
cost of attendance.  

s. Kriszta Pozsonyi, liaison to Cornell Cinema, then made her presentation on a letter 
of support for the Cinema. 

i. K. Pozsonyi: the Appropriations committee recommended a 3-part plan last 
year: 1) the GPSA would fund the Cinema to the full amount requested, 2) 
Cornell Cinema and the GPSA would develop an agreed-upon system to 
ensure a sustainable decrease in SAF funding starting next cycle, while also 
3) providing our Assembly’s endorsement and assistance for Cornell 
Cinema’s diversification of funding strategy.  

ii. K. Pozsonyi: This letter is a #3 instance. It is a letter to VP Lombardi and 
Dean Pendakur.  

iii. M. Battaglia: do you have more information on how low cost passes affect 
their budget? 

1. K. Pozsonyi: the University has footed the bill this year. That’s why 
we’re trying to figure out for next year. A new low cost all access 
annual pass would be $16-20 for undergraduates, and perhaps as low 
as $5 for graduate students. The main idea is this would reduce their 
costs from student-staff because the box office is one of their main 
expenses. There are other aspects of this, but a big thing is, if the 
pass is as low as five dollars, as soon as you buy your first ticket, you 
wouldn’t need to buy tickets anymore.  

iv. D Arora: where will that funding be used if you seek co-sponsorships? 
1. K. Pozsonyi: the majority of their costs will either go to staffing or 

to rental costs. The main reductions to their budget are reducing the 
number of screenings and cutting rental and staffing fees.  

v. A. Barrientos-Gomez: is the new financial model changing advertising 
prices? 

1. K. Pozsonyi didn’t know, but she will ask.  
vi. K. Pozsonyi: Student and Campus Life has historically worked together with 

the Cinema even though they haven’t co-sponsored it. Currently, the 



 
 
 
 
 

Cinema is renting the theater and office space from Student and Campus 
Life. They are wondering if this rental fee can be waived.  

vii. K. Krishnan: are they modeling how many more people will come in with 
the low cost passes? 

1. K. Pozsonyi: They’re hoping for as many as possible.  
2. K. Krishnan: so they’re looking at it as a spending reduction, not a 

funding increase. 
viii. E. Winarto: the idea with this letter is that the GPSA will approve it, and she 

will send it to VP Lombardi and Dean Pendakur. In the Bylaws we can’t 
vote on things right away without a ⅔ majority.  

ix. D. Geisler: how does this differ from a resolution? 
1. A. Loiben: one could make the argument that any formal motion is a 

resolution. We should treat this as a resolution.  
2. M. Munasinghe: resolutions have to go to the President, this does 

not.  
x. A. Loiben assumed the chairmanship of the meeting as E. Winarto and A. 

Barrientos-Gomez were involved in writing this letter.  
1. A. Cohn ​motioned to have the GPSA consider this letter, ​there was 

no dissent. The vote to consider was ​approved​ by: 17-0-4.  
2. A. Cohn ​motioned to waive the Bylaws requirement to wait one 

meeting to vote on this​, there was no dissent. The vote to waive the 
requirement to wait a meeting to vote was ​approved​ by: 17-0-4 

3. M. Battaglia: this is touching the idea that the Assembly values the 
Cinema. He made a motion to ​amend​ the last line of by adding “as 
well as realize cost savings” in between “...funding sources at 
Cornell,” and “including through providing letters…” (end of first 
paragraph). 

a. A motion was made to ​call the question​ on the amendment, 
there was no dissent to voting on the amendment. The 
amendment passed with unanimous consent. 

4. D. Geisler: when was this written and by whom? 
a. E. Winarto: the content was from K. Pozsonyi, but she 

helped put it into words. 



 
 
 
 
 

b. K. Pozsonyi: this came from her as a liaison. The Cinema 
informed her of a meeting with Student and Campus Life, 
and K. Pozsonyi contacted E. Winarto and C. Stambuk to 
write it. This happened right after last meeting. 

5. K. Krishnan: how much did we fund them for last year? 
a. C. Stambuk: $11 per student.  
b. K. Pozsonyi: it will go down by two dollars every two year 

cycle after this one. 
6. M. Battaglia made a motion to ​call the question​ on approving the 

letter. It was ​withdrawn​ as their was dissent. 
7. D. Geisler said he was confused why the GPSA writing this as 

additional support is necessary since we already provided support in 
the past.  

a. K. Pozsonyi: the strategy that we are in support started last 
year. The specific case of who Cornell Cinema would be 
contacting we didn’t know at the time.  

b. C. Stambuk: this letter is kind of consolidating everything 
from our activity fee process. We want to clarify our 
purpose.  

8. M. Battaglia: last year there was a very spirited discussion on the 
Cinema. The Cinema couldn’t stay on the activity fee in its current 
form. We gave it time to find alternative funds. It’s not a good fit for 
the student activity fee, but that doesn’t mean the Cinema isn’t a 
good fit for Cornell.  

9. M. Battaglia made a motion to ​call the question​ on the letter, there 
was no dissent to calling the question on the letter. The letter was 
approved​ 16-0-5.  

t. E. Winarto asked if anyone was present to run for the Masters-Engineering Voting 
Member seat (there was; the election was held during Division Breakout). 

III. Approval of the Minutes 
a. Minutes from August 27th.  

i. A. Loiben motioned to approve the Minutes from August 27th, there was 
no dissent. The Minutes were approved with unanimous consent. 



 
 
 
 
 

b. Minutes from October 15th. 
i. M. Battaglia motioned to approve the Minutes from October 15th, there was 

no dissent. The Minutes were approved with unanimous consent. 
c. A. Barrientos-Gomez ​motioned to call an election​ for a Masters of Engineering 

Voting Member, there was no dissent.  
i. K Krishnan: we generally open it up to people who aren’t here.  
ii. E. Winarto: A. Barrientos-Gomez sent out an email to all programs who 

have M-Eng degrees. A. Barrientos-Gomez told them to come to this 
meeting. There is currently one person here. 

iii. Shiang-Wan Chin nominated himself. He is studying systems engineering. 
He was involved in student governance at UC Davis as part of the Transfer 
Advisory Board. He is interested in increasing financial aid for graduate 
students and organizing food banks.  

IV. Division Breakout 
a. Voting was held during the Division Breakout. 
b. M. Battaglia motioned to extend the meeting by five minutes, there was no dissent. 

V. Committee Updates 
a. Committee updates are in the meeting packet. 
b. Send important information to Alexa Cohn.  
c. Shiang-Wan Chin was elected the Masters of Engineering Voting Member.  

VI. Open Forum 
a. A. Cohn: GPSA is hosting a 25th anniversary celebration at the BRB from 

4:30-5:30pm on Friday. You can get pizza, cake and free beer.  
b. K. Palumbo: 1) Masters in Health Administration students have started a mobile 

food pantry, 2) GPWomen is hosting a talk with Beth Prudence of CFP, and 3) the 
Office of Engagement initiatives is hosting a graduate student institute (see the 
Committee Updates sheet). 

c. M. Battaglia: recommended she speak with Anabel’s Grocery. 
i. K. Palumbo stated she was just passing on the message. 

d. K. Krishnan: Graduate Women in Science is having a lunch discussion tomorrow, 
noon to 1pm, on Women’s sexual and reproductive health, Plant Science 236. 

e. D. Arora will be sending out a survey to see if people are interested in 
departmental/division wine and cheese mixers. 



 
 
 
 
 

f. A motion was made to adjourn, there was no dissent.  
The meeting was adjourned at 7:05pm.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Matthew Ferraro 
Clerk of the Assembly 



 

Committee Updates 

Executive 

• We have our last meeting on November 26th, 2018 

• If the information on your name tent is not accurate or if you still do not have a name 

tent, please see Andy after the meeting or contact him. 

• There was a “glitch” with the list-serves, if you were not able to receive GPSA emails, or 

wanted to be removed from the lists-serves but are still on the mailing list, contact Andy  

• Direct all emails to alb445@cornell.edu  

Operations 

• There are still plenty of ways to get involved! If you want to learn more, contact me 

(Alex Loiben, aml372) and I can work with you to find a good spot for you.  

Communications 

• If any of the committees have any relevant dates that they would like to include in the 

summary of the meeting, please contact Alexa at arc326@cornell.edu  

• Don't forget to follow us on Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, and Slack! 

Appropriations 

• We're looking for members! If you have an interest in budgeting, revising the GPSAFC 

guidelines, Anabel's Grocery, Cornell Tech relations, or where your activity fee goes, 

come join the Appropriations Committee! Feel free to email me (Cassandra Stambuk, 

crs349) for more info. 

GPCI 

• If you would like to see data pertinent to a section of the GPCI, please let me (Alexa 

Cohn, arc326) know by midnight on Wednesday, November 14th, so we can request that 

data from administrators.  

 

Faculty Awards 

• With the Spring semester approaching, we will be starting up the Faculty Awards 

Committee again. This committee solicits nominations from students for faculty who 

have excelled in the realms of advising, mentoring, and/or teaching. Later in the Spring, 

the committee picks winners and holds a recognition ceremony. Please contact Alex 

Loiben (aml372) for more information. 

 

No Updates: Student Advocacy Committee, Programming Board, Finance, Diversity and 

International Students, General Committee, Graduate School. 

mailto:alb445@cornell.edu
mailto:arc326@cornell.edu


Ivy+ Summit 2018 

Breakout Sessions Summaries 
 

Alex’s Breakout Sessions 

 

• Housing 

o Most schools have a very tight off-campus housing market with inflated prices 

o Most grad students live off-campus 

▪ Exception: Columbia (bought lots of housing from NYC in 1970s) 

o A couple schools are looking to build new grad student housing (Dartmouth, 

Princeton) 

▪ Strongly considering public-private partnerships (P3s) akin to Maplewood 

▪ Taking lessons from our experience with Maplewood 

o Off-campus housing resources are often understaffed 

 

• Sustainability 

o Schools have varying degrees of commitment to sustainability 

▪ Some have carbon neutral pledges like Cornell 

▪ Others have emission reduction pledges like Yale 

▪ UChicago has minimal sustainability efforts 

o Most schools have debated and/or implemented fossil fuel divestment for 

endowment 

o Many schools mentioned how sustainability has been overtaken by other issues as 

a student body priority 

▪ Campus climate 

▪ National politics 

o Sustainability efforts tend to be spearheaded by undergrads 

 

• Responding to National Issues 

o Many schools’ student bodies do not expect their grad councils/assemblies to 

issue statements in response to every incident 

o External Affairs committees handle statements, lobbying efforts, etc. 

▪ We could start such a committee with enough member interest 

o Critical to develop relationships with local/state/national offices 

o National Association of Graduate-Professional Students (NAGPS) is a force 

multiplier for grad students lobbying in DC 

▪ Yearly trips to DC to leverage existing school lobbying resources 

▪ Cornell GPSA does not interact much with NAGPS right now 

 

• Engaging Membership 

o Individual emails are far more effective than mass emails 

o Many assemblies require their members to serve on committees 

▪ Cornell GPSA does not currently require field members to serve on 

committees 

o Slack has utility if used properly with member buy-in 



Alexa’s Breakout Sessions 

 

 

• Mental health 

o Access to mental health treatment is an issue everywhere 

o Grad students are often overlooked when universities assess mental health access 

on campus 

o A lot of grad student councils cannot get access to mental health surveys 

conducted by their respective universities 

o A lot of schools ONLY have counseling and no other opportunities for mental 

health help (i.e. EARS) 

o A lot of grad student councils do mental health programming (i.e. mental health 

awareness weeks) that we do not do 

 

• Professional development 

o Adequate professional development is lacking at a lot of schools 

o Pervasive mentality within faculty against students going outside of academia 

o Lack of resources especially for students who want to pursue jobs outside of 

academia 

o Most schools have a professional development advisor specifically for graduate 

students, but it’s overbooked and most career development is undergrad focused 

and insufficient for the needs of grad students 

 

• Diversity and inclusion 

o Lack of emphasis within diversity and inclusion spaces on students with 

disabilities 

o A lot of student governments lack committees specifically for diversity and 

inclusion issues 

o Many student governments work closely with graduate school administration on 

diversity and inclusion issues 

 

• International students 

o Difficulty getting international students to get involved in student governance 

o International students are their own population with their own issues and often get 

lumped into diversity and inclusion spaces 

o Reaching out to international student groups may be the best way to increase their 

engagement 

o Hosting events specifically for international students may also be helpful 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Rina’s Breakout Sessions 

 

• Physical Health & Insurance 

o Different schools have different insurance packages included in funding: 

▪ Columbia has free dependent insurance 

▪ Brown has free visual & dental; students can opt out and get cash 

o Consensus that some areas need more improvement in general: 

▪ Dental insurance 

▪ Substance abuse program 

 

• Students with Family 

o Common problems brought up: 

▪ No adequate and affordable childcare center 

▪ Providing more access and support for student spouses 

o Brainstorming on what more can be done to support students with family: 

▪ Culture change around accommodation/visibility 

▪ Issuing Spouse ID 

▪ More programming 

▪ Housing priority 

▪ Monetary support 

o New emerging areas of concern: 

▪ LGBTQ+ parents 

▪ Elderly parents care 

 

• Sexual Harassment & Assault 

o Several schools share recent incidents involving faculty & grad students 

o There was general apprehension and worry about new proposed changes to 

guidelines for sexual harassment from the Department of Education 

o Yale works together with their Title IX office to provide bystander intervention 

education; their reps can request this training for their respective department 

 

 

• Executive Session 

o Internal Ivy+ Affairs – Constitution 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Andy's Breakout Sessions 

 

• Working with Senior Administrators 

o Cornell has a great relationship with Senior Administrators 

o Other schools do not meet with Senior administrators as much as Cornell 

o Most schools try to foster a good relationship between their assembly and 

administrators. 

o One issue that was brought up was what should the proper protocol be with 

following up with administrators who have committed to a project but lost interest 

or are difficult to reach. 

 

• Graduate Student Unionization 

o Harvard - Union was approved in Spring 2018. The Union is in the process of 

negotiating its first contract with the administration. 

o Columbia - There is a strong resistance from the University to negotiate with the 

Union. The Union is currently demanding a bargain and if the University does not 

accept the bargain, then they will go on strike on December 4th, 2018 

o Other schools do not have a Union or are in the process of voting on it. 

 

• Campus Climate 

o Dartmouth, Princeton, and Yale have an active role when it comes to campus 

climate. 

o Princeton put together a set of policy proposals regarding sexual misconduct in 

faculty-graduate student relationships. 

o However, many schools’ student bodies do not expect their grad 

councils/assemblies to issue statements in response to every incident that occurs 

on campus. 

o In some schools, the campus climate issues occurred with the undergraduate 

population and the assemblies believed it was not their place to be vocal about the 

issue. 

 

Engaging Membership 

o Many schools, including Cornell, use Orientation as an opportunity for 

recruitment. 

o Brown actively contacted individual departments to send in a representative. This 

approach seemed to be effective. 

o Brown requested a list of student emails and contact information from 

administration in order to facilitate communication.  

o UPenn has a social hour after the assembly meeting to build relationships with 

their members. 

 


	2018-11-12 GPSA Agenda
	2018-10-29 GPSA Minutes 
	2018-11-12 Ops Updates
	2018-11-12 - Ivy+ Summit 2018 Report

